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PREFACE

An sttempt has been made in this problem to show the

economic effect of the railroad upon the town of Albuguerque

through the promotion of agriculture and the cattlé, sheep, and

mining induetries of the Territory. The sources of the study
have been chlefly newspapers published in Albucguerque during
the period from 1880 throuvgh 1893,

One of the earliest newsepapers im Albucuerque wae the

Albuguerque Review, a semi-weekly pasper in English and Spanish,

which was published during the early part of the 1870'e. ¥. H.
Balhache purchased thils paper in the 1870's and it becsme known

ae the Republican Review. Later its name was changed to the

Evening Review. In 1882 J. G, Albright moved the Sznta Fe

Democrat to Albuquerque and bought the Evening Review, and

the paper that developed from these two became known as the

Albuguergue Democrat.

The first dally newspaper, the Golden Gate, begesn publi-
eation June 5, 1880, under the asuspices of E. W. Deer, who
died in the fall of that year. The paper passed into the hands

of Jemes A. Spradling and became the Albuguercue Republicean.

Soon Hr. Spradling induced E. S. Stover, Williem C. Hazeldine,
Franz Huning, and Perfecto Armijo to join him in the publication
of a daily paper in old Albuquerque. They organized the Albu-~
querque Publishing Company September 25, 1880, under the

name of the Albucuergue Morning Journal. Very shortly, however,
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the name changed agaln to the Albugquergue Daily Journsl, and
the inltial edition of the paper was published on Oectober 14,

1880. ¥. 8., Burke, in January, 1882, purchased the paper and

again chenged its name.to the Albucuergue Morning Journsl. It

was at this time that the paper wasmoved to the new town. On

January 4, 1887, the Albucuerque Democrast published a notifieca-
tion to the effect that Mr, Albright had bought the Albuguergue

Horning Journal at a public sale because of the collapse of the

Albuguerque Publishing Company, and the pasper became known
a8 the Dglly Democrat. This remained the chief daily psaper of

Albuquerque until 1895,

All of these pspers hsve been of great use in the study
of this problem except the Golden Gste, of which no copies were
avallable even though an extensive search was made. Only a few
coples of the paper were printed, and if any are in existence
they could not be found.

I am indebted to Miss Evelyn Baumer of the Historical
Society of New Hexlieco at Santa Fe, to the Circulation Depart-

ment of the Albugmerscue Journal, to Dr. Dorothy Woodwsrd and

other professors of the University of New Mexico who alded by
helpful suggestions and eriticlsm, and to the members of the
library staff who very graciously helped in the search for

material.

Albuguerque, H.H. Lucille Boyle
August 7, 1948







CHAPTER I
THE GROWTH OF ALBUQUERQUE

For many years before the coming of the railroad,
Albuquerque had served zs a commerclal terminsl for the
people up and down the Rio Grande Valley from about Santa
Domingo to the southern boundary of the Territory. Even be-
fore the Sants Fe and Chihushus trade, the little town had
been an important plsce along the river in a sparsely settled
country. With the advent of the Sants Fe Trail, Albuguerque
became a way station where stage coach lines changed and where
wagon trains halted on the long trek from the Missouri River
Valley to Chihushua and Durango. During the period of the
militery occupation of Mexico by the Unlited States troops in
1846 and the years following, Albuquerque gained its reputa-
tion as & freighting center because of its location and the
“natural position of accessibility from all voints of the
compass."l

A Transpor%ation in and out of Albuquerque was almost
entirely by oxen and mule traing, and when the possibility
of a railrosd developed a few people objected to its coming .~
becsuse they feared the business of the traders and that of

the wagon trains would be rulned. Wool, pelts, hidees, and

3 Victor Westphall, "History of Albuguerque, 1870-1880,*
(unpublished Master's Thesls, University of New Mexico,
Albuquercue, New Hexlco, 1947), p. 4.







minerals made up the freight on the eastbound wagon trains
whlle merchandise and government supplies had to be brought
into the town. It wae estimsted by the United States Burveyor
General that three thousand wagons were used annuslly for con-
veying goods from the eastern states to the Territory of New

fexleo inecluding the vehicles for government supplies and

2
transportation. The average burden of ezsch wagon was esti-

nated et five thousand pounds, end %the value of imported
materials amounted to three million dollsrs. A portion of
these imports was sent to Hexleco, and Mexican commodities
valued &t seventy-five thousand dollars were returned to lew
Mexilco annually.3

By the 1870's Albuquercue was scutely awasre of the need
for rellroad communications with the etates to the esst. In
the years following the Civil War, westward expansion for land
end the cattle boom of the 1860's made the commercisl advan-
tages of a2 rallroad more appsrent. The only newspaper of the
town during that time, the Republliecen Revlew, recognirzed the
fact that the coming of the reilroad was a basle fsctor in
the economic development of the town. In the decade before
the railrosd came, the populstion of Albuguerque had increased
to 1,307 with fifty-four Anglo-Amerlcansg, or persons not born i

in tpe Territory.4 Because of the Anglo minority, Protestant

2
Pr 2RS,

° Ibid.

% Westphall, op. oit., p. 30.

Elles Brevoort, New Mexico (Santa Fe: n.n., 1874),







3
religions haed a difficult time gsining a foothold in Albuguer-

que, and educatlon wes carried on by private and mission
schools.

Transcontinental traffic, rivalry with the Union
Pacific end Southern Pacific Rallroeds in the west and the
Szentz Fe trade beckoned the railroad toward the southwest,
but from ite coming 1t wae Albuguerque, and not Ssnta Ie,

that profited most. The early success of the Atchison,

Topeka, and Santa Fe Railroad5 in the southwest was due in

pert o the mining clesime in the Terriltory of New Mexico and
the interceptlion of the cattle tralle coming up from Texas.
As the rallroad advanced toward Albucuerque, business condl-
filons in the town improved, competitlon developed smong the
mercantlile establishments, and many new treding facilities
vere instituted. Merchandise could nmow be picked up at

the terminus of the rallrosd and frelghted into Albucguercue,
end as the dlstance between the town and the railroad grew
shorter, the freighting problem decreased in importance. The
coming of the rsilroad marked the end of the importance of
the old town of Albuquercue and the building up of the new
town zround the railrosd devot. Thias new part of Albuquercue
soon became the nucleus of populatiom attracting the agricul-
tural, cattle, sheep, and mining interests of the Territory.

5 The Atchison, Topeke, and Sante Fe Rallrosd will
herezfter De referred to ac the AT&SF.
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Because of the difficulty in obtaining &t a reasonable
price an adjacent tract of land thaet would be sdequate to
accomodate the raillrosd facilities, the rasilroad station
was bullt approximztely two mlles ezgt of the town.6 Frenz
Huning hed purchesed z tract of 700 secres of land south and
east of O0ld Albuguerque, snd comprisimng the present srez from
Central Avenue south %o the Rio Grande and from Tenth Street
wesl along the old Berelas scequis to the gate of the Hanzano
School west of Laguna BouleVard7 which he hoped to sell st a
high price to the right of way men. However, he failed to
meke an agreement with them, and the rallroad tracks were
lalid east of hls lend. Another voint which is seldom con-
gldered regerding the fzilure of the rsillrosd to reach 0ld

Town 1s the fact that the town iteelf was situsted in a bend

of the Rio Grande, and a curve would have been necassary'in
order to reasch the town.

The last stage ceme from the esst into Albuguergue
by way of Las Vegas, Bants Fe, and La Baj)ada on April 19,
1880.8 On the‘twenty—second of April the reception for éhe

train on the New Hexiev and Southern Psgeiflc Railroad, known

6 Weatphall, op. cit., p. 85 £f.

7 Personal Interview, Hr. Williem A. Keleher, June 15,
1948; Interview, lise Erna Fergusson, June 16, 1948; Bernelillo
County Deed Records; Julla Keleher, ™0ld Deys in 0ld Albuguer-
que,” liew Mexico Magezine, 20:22-23, January, 1942.

8 Albuguergue Review, April 22, 1880; Kelecher, op. eis.,

P 22,







to us a8 the AT&SF, was held in Albuguerque, although the
train hed sctually mede its arrivel on April 6 bringing sup-
plies to the railro=d contractors.9 From this time begesn

the dslly trek from the old town to the new town which grew
up around the red painted station house as men deserted the
old town to move nesrer to the center of activity crested

by the railrosd. Adobe houses surrounding the plaza in the
old town were gradually ebandoned, end lumber, brick and iron
becane the more substantlsl materizl from which the houses
and storees of the new town were bulls.

The immediate effect of the railroad upon Albuquerque;T
i1s shown by the shift of the business center closer to the }
atatlon and by the subsequent growth of the town. Rallroad
vromoters organlized the New Mexico Town Company end sold lots
on Rallroed Avenue at prices averaging ne less than twe and
three hundred dollars.lo Herchants, longing for buildings L
two storlies high but having neither the money nor the need
for two storles, ran up félae fronts to the height of & second
floor and painted windows on the wallssll Railroad Avenue,

along which the stores and hotels and saloons were built, wes

Y Westphall, ap. eit., p. 94; Albuguercue Review,
April 10, 1880. ;

10

Albucuergue Daily Journsl, December 18, 1880, Here-
after cited az the Journal.

11 Erne Fergusson, "From Rodeo to Rotary," Century
Hagazine, 113:119, December, 1926.







6
a deep sandy stretch that became 2 serles of puddles in wet

P

wezther. The bulldings were set above the level of the
gtreet as much as five feet to avold the floods, and the
boardwalks were reached only by steps. Studébaker wagons
and Hexlecan ponies stood at the posts while thelr owners
transacted business in the town, and the passenger depol
wlith its conclave of hacke and cafrlages presented quite a
metropolitan appearance on the arrival and depsrture of

“ e
“  There was an average of four saloons to the block,

trains.l
end by Jenuasry 1, 1881, there were four two-story bulldings
in the new town with twelve or sixteen good substantial
structures and several smaller onesﬁlu The buildinges of the
old town were mostly of adobe as can be seen there to this
day, but the constructions in the new town were of lumber,
iron, and brick. Only one shanty belonging to the rallroad
gompany stood smong the new siruectures of the new town.
Eastern business men, seeing the advantages of
Albuquerque, furnished the New Hexleco Town Company wlth a
rush of transactions in the sale of lote near the depot.

In one day $2,250 worth of lots were sold 1ln the new town

with James Q. Wille of Greeneville, Hassachusetts, purechasing

12 Railroad Avenue wes the stireet that is now Central
Avenue.

43 Journgl, Janusry 10, 1881.
14
Ibid.

15 Ibid., December 20, 1880.
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16 By the end of 1880 almost

eight building lots for $1,800.
$60,000 worth of building lots had been sold, and there was

a growing demend for lumber of =11 kinds to be used for
building purposes.l7 Directly west of the site selected for
the depot grounds of the Atlantic snd Pacific Rzllrozd was
'the Baca addition to the new town, amd many of the most de~
silrable bullding lots for residence or business purposes were
contained in this area.la With the influx of population there
was a demand for bullding lote in 211 parts of the new town
end no matter whet the price, they sold without z word. The
two lote on each slde of Ralilroad Avenue and lying right in
the ditech whieh parslleled the rallroad sold for $250 each.19
This ditch often overflowed snd the part of the town nearby
wes slmost submerged, but the chief engineer of the AT&SF
dispersed the water by measns of & camal to the river, and

the erea wes made safe for building.

After the railroad resched Albucguercue snd was eX-
tended beyond this point, the wholesale trade of the town
grew rapldly. With the completion of the railroad to San
Harcisl much frelight was delivered amd received from there

daily, and the freight recelpts inereased. Albuguercue

16 Ibid., December 18, 1880.

D

17 Ibid., January 10, 1881.

D et

18 Ibid., January 1, 1881.

19 Journgl, February 3, 1881,






8
gerved as the best place for raillrosd contractors asnd miners
to purchase supplies. The freight reeelpts for one firm 1in
Alvuquercue amounted to over (3,000 in one month in 1880.20
In November of that year, the ATZSF conductor brought a train
of sixty-seven carse loaded with freight into Albuguerque.

his wae the longest train that had ever resched the town,
and 1t created muach interest among the citizens. By January,
1882 the freight recelpts for the ATE3F at Albuguerque were
;86,?68.13,73 and by Harch of the following year freight
recelpts and tickets =t the Albuquercue office had increased
to §93,326.56, while the receipts for the A&P rosd were
315,965.72.23 The freight receipts for the AT&SF at Albu-
queryue for 1883 were $1,200,000 or $100,000 e month, and lo-
cal merchants pald as much as $70,000 of that amount on in-
coming freight.zb ¥ith the increasing populatlon in the
Territory which iIn turn caused grester production in mining,
agriculture, sheep and cattle activitlies, the traffic created
by the railrosd czused the expansion and growth of Albuguergue.
“The railroad became an zrtery through which immigra- k-

tion and commerce flowed into the Terrltory cf Hew Hexico,

20

2 Ibid., November &4, 1880.

Ibid., November 16, 1880.

22

ag MJ.

Morning Journal, February 2, 1882. Hereafter clted

23 Albuguerque Daily Democrst, April 3, 1883.
2k

¥J, January 1, 1884,







g
and Albucguercue was the point of Junction for the three lines
of the Santa Fe system; thet from the esst, that to the Pgeifie,
end that to the HMexlcan border. The AT&SF projected its line
along the old Santa Fe Treil over Glorietta Pass to Lamy and
by way of Galisteo Creek to Sants Dominge on the Rio Grande
wiiich 1t followed to Albuguercue and Islata.25 Albuquergue
remained the terminsl untll the rcad reached S:zn Hareiel,
one hundred and three miles south, on September 23, 1880.26
From here the line, under & new cherter, the Rlo Grande, iexieco
and Faclfic Relilroad Company, went on seventy-six miles to
Rincon, where it dlvided.27 OCne branch went southesst seventy-
eight miles %o El Paso, reaching there June 11, 1881 and soon
obtalined access to Mexico City over the reils of the Mexican

28

Central Railway. The other branch went southwest one

hundred and twenty-elght miles to Deming where 1t established
connectlons with the Southern Pacific Rallroad on March 8,

2
1881, thus effeecting s transcontinentsl line to Californis. ?

25 ¢. A. Higgins, To Cslifornie Over the Santa Fe Trail
(Chicago: Passenger Depsrtment, Sznts Fe, 1907), D. 32.

26 James Marehell, Ssnte Fe (New York: Random House
Publisghers, 1945), v. 166.

27 Glenn De. Bradley, The Story of the Santa F

(Boston: The Gorham Press, 1920), 207. e

28 1pia.

~ After making connections with the Southern Pacific
Rallroad in Deming, the AT&SF, with the intention of even-
tually connecting with the Sonora Railroad, secured & track-
age agreement with the Southern Pacifie to Benson, Aplzona,
and in the summer of 1881 started bullding the HNew Mexico and

\
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Another transcontinental route by wey of the Santa Fe was
effected when the Western Diviaion of the A&P, created by
the amalgamation of the Saznta Fe and 'Frisco Corporation,
joined with the Southern Pacific at Needles, Cslifornis, in
August, 1883.30

Thus early in the decade of the eighties Albucuercue
became the Junction of the three lines of the Santa Fe system
by whieh passengers and freight reached the Pscific Coast: v

from Albuquerque to Deming by way of the Santa Fe and on to
[

29 (cont.)

Arizona Rallroad southwest toward Nogales on the Mexican
border. After Huntington of the Southern Pacific induced

the Santa Fe officlszls to submit to an agreement which blocked
the Atlantic and Paciflic Railrozd at the crossing of the
Colorado River, the Santa Fe accuired the Sonora Railrosad.

On October 25, 1882 the Santa Fe track met the Sonora line

at Nogales, and thus connections were made with the western
section of Mexico.

A charter, granted in 1866 to the Atlantic and Pacifie
Rallroad, gave that company the right to bulld from Spring-
field, Hissouri, to the Cenadian River, through Albuguerqus
and on towzrd the Paeific along the 35th parallel route with
the right to connect with the Southern Paeific in eastern
Czlifornia. By 1880 the company had built: 34.4 miles of track
but hed surveyed to San Francisco. Simultsneously, the 5t.
Louls eand S=n Franelsco rosd, which owned*seven-eighths of the
A&P stock, had extended its line as far west as Wichita,
Kensas. Esrly in the ye:-r a connection was made in Kansas be-
tween Bedgewlick on the 8%. Louls and San Franecisco line and
Holstead on the Santa Fe, giving the 'Frisco a continuous line
from S5t. Louls to Isleta, twelve miles below Albuguergue,
through running right over the Santa Fe treck. The two com-
panles combined thelr resources and together bullt a main
line to Californla, under the original chzrter of the A&P,
from Albuquergue, or Isleta where the Santa Fe crossed the
Rlo Grande. For further informstion see Bradley, op. cit.,
pp. 225 ff., and Marshall, op. cit., pp. 167 ff.

30 Look Edltors, The Santa Fe Trail (New York: Random

P ]

House Publishers, 1946), p. 103.
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the coast by way of the Southern Pacifie; from Albuguerque
end Isleta %o the Colorade River at Heedles, Celifornia, by
way of the Santa Fe and on to the coast by the Southern
Paeific; from Albuguerque to Deming by the Senta Fe, on to
Benson, Arizona, by the Southern Pacifie, and on %o Hogales,
Hexleo, by the Santa Fe.

The AT&BF enjoyed a commanding position in the railrosad
situation in New Mexlco beceuse 1t tapped the most fertile end
most populous sections of the Territory snd drew a gratifying
amount of passenger and freight traffic from all sections of
the United States. W¥With the facilitlee afforded by the rail-
roed and favorable rates granted to passengere and household
goods, farming implements, end stock, immigration wes en-
couraged, and the povulation of the Territory increased.

With the opening of the Atlantic and Pacific Rall-
road to the west, a struggle ensued between Albuguercue and
Sen Frenelsco for the trade of Arizona. Agricultural, sheep,
and csttle products had been coming to Albucueraue to také
edvantage of the shipping facllitiees to the east since 1880,
but after the transcontinental line of the A&P afforded asc-
cess to Cslifornia, only that trsde east of the Colorasdo
Rilver Tell %o Albuquercue, The Rlo Grande bridge, completed
in 1882 at a cost of 22,000, provided the mining aress,
cattlemen, and sheepmen in the section west of Albuguerque

with sccess to the markets in the town snd soon became one
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Tournal Building, Silver Avenue and Second Street

N ew Hotel, now being built, corner Gold Avenue and Fifth Street.
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1 For the cereal crops

of the greater assets of the town.3
of western Hew Mexieo snd northern Arizona, Albucuercue was
the market place zs well ac the base of supplies for the
country between the Rio Grande and the Colorado River. The
town was also a supply center for military camps and Indian
reservetions as is indicsted by the shipment of food and -
merchandliee to sueh points. At one time four cazr losds of
merchandise and supplies for Camp Apache, Arizona, were sent
west over the A&P rosd from Albuquerque.32

The railrosd to the west was of grest benefit to the
conatruetion work carried on in Albucuerque, because building
gtone was not readily availsble near the town. Brick wae
menufactured in the town, end pine lumber for bullding wse
readlly avelilable from the Sandia Hountalns &t cheap prices,
but stone was necessary for foundations end trimming of brick
buildinge. The low rates of fréight cherged by tpe A&P road
enabled stone to be brought in and coﬂétruct;on to proceed at
a rapld pzce. During the first five monthe of 1882 before
the A&P road had reached beyond the Arizons line, thile reil-
rosd brought over 5,000 ftons of stone into Albucuerque.33
The completlion of the A&P roszd from Vinets, Oklshoma, to

Albuquerqgue opened up trade with the Texas Banhandle and the

* Evening Review, October 17, 1882.

52 Journsl, April 2, 1882,

33 1pia., June 8, 1882.
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Pecoce Velley, both of which were good stock country and both
of whlch used the trading facilities in Albucuerque.

After the railrosd was extended west to California,
the vrineclipsl shops of the AT&SF west of Topeks were located
in Albucuercue and afforded employment 5o seversl hundred
men. FProgress was evident in Albuguerque as early =ze 1882
in the graded streets with good sidewalks, three miles of
gtreet car line in operstlon, a telephone exchange with
twenty-five miles of wire connecting =11 perte of the town,
gas lighting on the streete and in residences and business
places, blocks of business houses with iron asnd glases fronts,
two benks, two dally newspapers, the Morning Journal and the

Evening Review, flve churches, and hotels, stores, and offices

34

necessary to accomodate the publiec.
Henufacturing interests in Albuquercue developed a
foundry and machine shops which turned out grest guantities
of work for the mining camps snd ceattle renches of the
Territory end eliminzted the long trek to Colorzdo for various
kinds of tin work to be done. A wool scouring plant, estab-
liehed to vprocess the wool from the surrounding sectlons be-
fore shipment, removed the dirt from the wool and thus re-
duced the welight of the wool and elimin:=ted excees shlpping
coste. A broom factory, a brewery, an ice vlant, electriecity,

ges and water works, the telephone and telegravh, together

3% 1v1a., June 16, 1882,
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wlth proflits derived from the mining, agricultursal, sheep
and catile Interests of the Territory, soon made the little
town one of the most progressive nlames between Kansas City v/////
and San Franciscé. By 1890 many lines of business, commer-
clal, mechsnlesl, and professionsl, were represented in
Albuguercue, lnecluding two weekly and two daily newspapers,
two rellasble banking institutions, amd z free public library
which was maintained by a speelsl tax levied by the city
council.

The division of the town by Raillroazd Avenue and the
arrangement of the preclncts virtuslly deprived the greater
part of the population of the new town of the right of suf-
frage snd deprived the town of many English speaking citizens
end officlals. The enterprising citizens of New Town Albucuer=-
que reslized in Janusry, 1881, thzt they had been progressing
& 1little too rapidly for their own good. The occasion foi
concern wzs the election for Justice of the Peace and Con-
stable set for February 1, 188l. No one was eligible to
vote, becsuse the new precinet, established on January 5,

38 L

would be only twenty-six days o0ld on election day.
order to solve the problem, the Jourmal asnnounced before the
election that the eltizens had decided to consider the date
of the esteblishment of the precinet gg Janusry 3. This

sction made the precinct the reguired thirty days old on

2
35 Ibid., Jenuasry 27, 1881.
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February 1, thus enabling its eifizens to vote and the reputa-
tlon of the new town %to be upheld.

The rallroad copened the Territory to investors from
ell parts of the country and brought im etable, dependent
citizens as well as the outlaws. By February, 1881, Albucuer-
que's inhabltents numbered about 3,000 with Hlsggaosj7 still
in the majority, but with the rapid ineresse in population
from Colorado znd the stztes to the east, the Anglo-Americans
soon became the predomin:ting influence. The mzterial growth

of Albuguerque could not keep pasce with the repld inecresase

B

o

of its population, and meny people were unsble temporerily
to find living accomodetions. An unfurnished room in 1880
and 1881 rented for twenty to forty dollars per month, and

& furnished room rented =t any price saked for it, while the
Journal indie:ted thet no rooms were &vailable.BS The Armijevfz-
Hotel, located near the depot on the corner of Railroszd

Avenue and Second Street,relieved the situztion somewhat,

but the influx of populstion was greater than accomodstions
afforded LY 1ﬁcreasing conetruction.

By June, 1882, it was estimated by the Journal thzt

the population of Albuguerque, including 0ld Town, hed

Ibid.

’ Journal, February 24, 1881. The word Hispsnos re-
fers here to the Spanish epeaking people of Hew Mexico and
will be used in thie gsense hereafter.

38 Journs1, Hovemver 9, 1880.
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reached the enormous figure of 8,000, and in Januery, 1884,
this estimate had increased %o 10,000. The Horning Journsl
in September, 1885, indiecated thatfthe population had in-
creased to 13,000, but this estimate seems too great, al-

though the Census Renort of Bernalillo County for 1885 showed

a total populstion of 20,061 with en incresse of 2,836 Anglo-
Americans over 1884. By 1890 the population of Bernzlillo
County was 24,800. I% was in 1892 thet the Albuguercue

Morning Demoerat estimated the population of New Town Albu-

cuerque at 7,000 and with the 01d Town and the suburbs the
vopulation of the town was estimated &t 12,000.39 e

The Territorial Falras held in Albuguerque annually
from 1881 sttracted people from &ll sectione of the Terri-
tory and increszsed the trade and prestlige of the town. Every
county in Hew Hexico wae represented 1n the fzire from 1882
efter the event became sn established custom, snd many sec-
tions of Arlgzonz came to the falrs.

The people of Albucuercue were beginning to be cquite

coneerned in 1882 over the faect that Bernalillo County hsd

39 These estim:tes of the popul:tion growth of Albu-
guerque are ineconsistent, and mey not be too relisble, but
they do indicste thst grest strides were made in the bulld-
ing up of the town by sn influx of population. For further
informztion see Journal, December 16, 1880; February 25, 1881;
Mareh 1, 1882: June 1 % 1882 Dfilx Democrat, May 29, 1883;

e e ot e

Horning Journsl, Januery 1, 188%L; September 25, 1885; The

Albucuercue Horning Demoerat, Jenuasry 18, 1892; Buresu of
Imnigr=tion Report, 1595, p. 21; Buresu of Immigration Report,
1901, ». 16; Buresu of Immigration Report, 1890.
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no public schools. I% seems that about {4,000 for the public
school fund had been raiged, but the majority of this fund

wag turned over to the private schools conducted by the Jesult

£

Fathers and the Sisters of Loretta. These aschools, recognized
a8 an arm of the Church under Church control, were thersfore
supported by a tax on the publie, and a spirit of rcsentment
at thle situation was expressed by the Joumnal. In the fol-

L

lowing yeares publie schools were established, and in 1893

the School Boerd wes guite embarrassed when the closing of

the Albuquerque National Bank, in which {18,000 of the school L

fund was deposlted, made it impossible to pay the teschers.
In 1882 the Chilill Land Grant (eee map of land grants
in the Rio Grande Valley) hed not Deen assessed for taxation,

end under the provisions of the law the sheriff of Bernalillo

- County assessed the property at {500,000 msking the taxes

5,000 and adding to the revenue of the connty.“o By 1882
Albucuercue hesd definitely become the county seat of
Bernalillo County and was making strides in the aecuisition

of the material thinge of life.bl By 1890 the asseszsed yro=-
verty of the people of Albuquerque upon which they were vaying
taxes was valued at $3,000,000, while that of the whole county

wes Vvalued &t %5’000‘000.42 The merchente of Allaquercue

0 Evening Review, August 11, 1882.

4 Dgily Democrst, Hay 29, 1883.

e Morning Demoecrst, Februsry 9, 1890; February 21, 1896.

-







rere covering an erea of about 100,000 aquare miles by thils

time, and the wholesale trade contributed to the growth of

1

¢isl Club of Albuguerque, & soclal commer-

o]

e Lonmme

cizl eorgenization with the object of promoting the lnterestis

of the town and of the Territory, was organized and incorpor- y

0
W

ated in June, 1890, with thirty nembers. Constructlion was
atill in progress in the town, and in 1891 almost a million
dollars wae put into construction work in Albuguerque. Real

sct

-

estzte had increassed in price as is indlcated Dy the

P " o s N

that the corner lots of Rallrosd Avenue andFourth 3treet sold
i s L
hly L

& S & - gin
for £12,500 in 1091.
~

The rellroad wee the factor that contivuted most to

the economic growth of both the old and new town Albuguergue.

[l

With merket snd shipping fecllitles availszble in Albuqguerque,
the verious products from the agricultural and mining districts
and the eattle znd sheep sections of the Terrltory were brought
to market here. Theprosperity thet resulted ceused the rapid
development of Albuguercue and, to a large extent, the deser-
tion of bugliness from the old town to the new town nearer the
raillroad. As the close connection by streetears and streets
grew between the two centers of cciivwity, the gpirit of

|

rivelry dled out and served %o promote the welfare of the {

° Morning Demoerst, January 1, 1891.

AMD, January 1, 1892.
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CHAPTER II
AGRICULTURE

S8ince the development of Albuguercue devpended largely
upon its ablility to expand ss a shipping center, the exten-
sion of farms through the Rlo Grande Valley wae 2 basgic
problem. One of the greatest factors in retarding the develop-
ment of the sgricultural lands of Hew Hexico was the Spsnish
and Mexican Land grants constituting one of the most diffl-
cult problems in the hlstory of the Territory. These grants,
lying mostly in the northern and central psrt of the Terrltory,l
(see map of the Spanish and Mexican Land Grants) were gifts
to individuals end settlements made by Spaln from 1693 to
1821 and by the government of Mexlco from 1821 to 1846 for
the purpose of encouraging the colonizatlion of New Hexiao.z
¥ith the conquest of 1396 and the Treazty of Guadslupe-Hidalgo
in 1848, the United States inherited 2 land problem and
guaranteed to the holders of grante the continued right of v’

posgsession if thelir righte could be proven. However, nothing

was done to solve thls problem until Congress enacted a law

in 1854 cresting the office of Surveyor General for New Mexico

in order to "ascertein the origin, nsture, charscter

1 Albucuerque Morning Journal, April 2, 1882.

e Cherles F. Coan, A History of Hew Mexico (New York:
The American Historiesl Society, 1925) P L7k,
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and extent of 2ll elaims under the laws, usages, and customs
of Spain and Mexico,“3 and to mske a report to the Secretsary
of the Interior of the United States with the declsion and
recommendation as to the velidity of the claims.

In many cases there was no document defining the

rights of the parties claiming possession and no map showing
the boundary lines of the grant, thus boundaries and the
emount of land in the grant were uncertzin. In small eclaims
the holders based their rights on the vossession and occu-
paney of thelr ancestors, and even lazrge amounts of land were
controlled by descendants of old Spenish and Mexican femllles
wiho hed received a graent of indefinite locality and extent

L
in conglderstlon of gervices rendered to Spain or lexieco.

To trace the original document snd establish clear title

required extensive legal examination and asction, yet this

was necessery before a land grant could be confirmed or a

title given to a rurchaser. Therefore, these lands were

segregated from the public domain and settlement and pure

chase was prevented. HMany of the elaimants d4id little to

improve the lands, and the Territory was unable to collect
taxes on unconfirmed grants.

As early as 1860 the government began trying to settle

J United States Btstutes st Large, Vol. X, p. 309.

% Ibia.; Williem A, Keleher, Maxwell Land Grant
(8anta Fe: The Rydal Press, 1942), p. 7; MJ, April 2, 1882.







24
clalms by confirmation of & large number of grante, the most

5

important of whieh was the Maxwell Land Grant. Governor
Armijo, the governor of Hew Hexico, granted to Guadalupe
Hireanda and Charles Beaubien an ingignificent amount of land
in the north-east section of lew Mexico in 1841 which was so
indefinitely defined that Lucien B, Hgxwell, Beaublen's sone
in-lew, who later beecame the proprietor, was able to secure
from Congress so lavish an interpretation of the original docu~-
ment ae to give him the ownership of an area three times the
size of Rhode Island.6 George W. Jullan, Surveyor Genersl of
lew Hexieo, asserted in 1887 that the HMaxwell Land Grant hed
been limited by the law which mede it to twenty-two squsare
leagues, or zbout 96,000 acres, but in 1879, in direct viole-
tion of the order of the Secretary of Interior, the grant was

agaln surveyed and patented for 1,714,764, or nearly 2,680 square

miles.7

12a5rgoan, op. cit., p. 474; Keleher, Maxwell Land Grant,
p‘ .

6 Hgurice G. Fulton and Peuwl Horgan, Editors, New i

0! Chronicle (Dallas: Banks Upshaw Company, 1937), DD.
2%3- ; Keleher, op. sit., p. 128;PCoan, oD+ 8lt., p. 474,

7 Keleher, Egégg;;_ngg.ggggg, p. 127, Another grant
confirmed by Congress in 1860 was the creation of five grants

conslsting of 99,253.47 acres each from the old Luls C. de Bseca
Land Grant in lleu of the Las Vegss Land Grant. Two of these

new grants were located in liew lexlco, one being the Baca Loeca-
tion Humber 1 (see map of Spanish and Mexican Land Grents) situa-
ted north and west of Bernalillo, and the other belng the Baca
Locatlon Humber 2 which became a p:.rt of the Bell Rench, while
the other three locations were in Colorado and Arizona. This
information was obtained in a personal interview with HMr. F.J.
Otero on March 26, 1948. i#r. Otero i1s the son of Marisno 8.
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Through the 80's 1little effort was made to secure con-

firmation of grants and vast tracts of graezing, mineral, znd
egricultural land were forced from the market thus retarding L//
the development of the Territory.s It was estimated that
every other acre in Hew HMexleo was & psrt of a land grant
or elaimad as su&h.9 Recognizing the fact that the land situa~
tion wazs a genuine hindrance to the development of the Terri-
tory, Governor Sheldon in 1885 commented that

the lands embraced in theese (elaims) having been

withdrawn from entry and ssle, are effectively in

mortmaln until the question a2s to thelr validity

is finally settled. Title to these lands is un-

certain, and their settlement and development are

retarded to a great extent. It would be the grezt-

est blessing if an esrly date could be set when the

lend grant incubus should be entirely removed from

his territory.i0 :

There was much opposition to the government's confirm-

ing such enormous c¢laims zs the Maxwell Land Grant and the
Baca Locztions; concequently few titles were settled until

the eatablishment of the United States Court of Private Land

7 {cont.) Otere of Bernalillo and Albuguercgue and the grand-
son of Don Jose Leandro FPerea of Bernslillo. He is 78 years
old and recalls with & clear memory the deys when he traveled
with his father in a covered wagon to Pueblo, Colorado, in
1878 %o meet the train at the end of the tracks.

& uy, april 2, 1882.

9 Albuguergue Evening Review, August 25, 1882.

" Aztlan (Bureau of Immigratlion Report, edlted by

William C. Riteh, (Boston: D. Lathrop Company, 1885), p. 81.
Heresfter cited as BIR, 1885.
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Claims in 1891, which wss the beginning of a polley of setile

n A few grants had been con-

ing titles by court procedure.
firmed from 1861 to 1869 by Congrees, but none were coafirmed
in the 70's and 80's although the Surveyor General approved
a number of claims and annually recommended the adoption of
a method to settle claims.lz
Lend grante in the Rio Grande Valley around Albucuergue

prevented the settlement of large aress beceuse of the dlffi.
eulty in obtzining clear titles. These grants were the Albu-
querque Land Grant, the Alameda Land Crant, the Elens Gallegos
Lend Grent, and the Atrieco Land Grant. The Atrisco and
Ranchos de Atrilsco Lasnd Grant, containing 82,728.72 scres,
waa made to the inhebitante of the ftown or community of
Atrisco by the Spanish and Mexlesn governments on Yctober 28,
1692, and April 28, 1768.13 The documents defining the
boundaries and limite of the grant stated:

On the north the *Barrance de Juan de Peres" a

straight line to the boundary of San Fernsendo,

the westerly voint thereof resching the benk of

the Caja del Rio Puerco. On the south by the

Colorado Peak and from the Colorado Peak a

straight line to the Rio del Horte and "Los Esteras,”
g2id boundaries are well knowvn by szid 8itlo.

o Coen, op. eit., p. 474,

12 Ipsa.
13 prom an Absrset of the Atrisco Lend Grent found in

the office of the Western American Insursnce and Abstract
Company, dated 1905., ff.
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In 1885 the inhabltants of the Atrisec community filed a
petition with the Surveyor General of the Territory of New
Kexlco for the United Ststes for the grant to be made under
the corporate naeme of the Town of Atrisco. This petition was
signed by a committee of four, Jesus Armljo y Jaramillo,
Henuel Anto. Jamarlllo, Benceslao Chaves, and Marlano Herrera
and 146 other residents and property owners of Artisco and
Ranchos de Atrisco. The district court approved the petition
for the grant February 26, 1891, but the Court of Private
Land Claims did not confirm the claim until September 28, 1897.
Thls unconfirmed land grant ie only one instance in whiech
many sareas surrounding Albucuercque were kept free of Anglo
settlers and farmers for many years. ™,

Land from the publlic domasin was savailable under the
Homestesad and Desert Land Acts, but there was much desirable
land in the Rio Grande Valley within disputed grants which
was not acceseible to the settler. Through the Court of
Private Land Clalms, Bernslillo County hsad more land restored
to the public domain than any other county in New Mexico, but
this lend wes not evellsble during the 80's, and farmers dared

not settle on unconfirmed lands.lh

Since the farming popula-
tion up and down the Rio Grande Vzlley nesr Albuguercue con-
stituted one of the basic elements of material growth and

i
garmlng‘gx Irrigetion in Hew Mexico (Buresu of Im-
migration Report, n.p., 159?5, p. 56. Herezfter cited as
BIR, 1897.
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development of the town and gave permsiience to many inter-
ests and to industry, it was essentlsl that land be made
available to them.

Despite the fact thzt agriculture was one of the chiefl
occupatlone withln the Territory, until the coming of the
rallroad little wae known outside Hew Mexico zbout the agri-
cultural possibilities of the Rlo Grande Velley. This valley
wae one of the prineipal sgricultural sectlons of New Mexico,
extending from about 3ante Domingo to the southern boundary
of the Territory, = distance of more than three hundred miles,
and furnishing sn outlet for agricultural products through
Albucuergue, which was located 1n'the,central part of the
Territory and through El Peso, which wae situated a2t the
southern edge of Hew Hexlico on the Rlo Grande.ls Yarying in
width from three to seven miles aznd having sn equitable
climate, the areas of the valley which were under cultivation
produced nezrly every kind of grain, vegetablee and fruit
grown in the temperate zone.

¥ith the coming of the railroad commercial and trading
interests in liew Mexlco broadened, and Albuouerque became the
ghipping voint and the metropolis of the Territory and of the

gouthwest. The town had the advantgge of being locsted 1n

Hew H ico (Buresu of Imrigration Report, Santz Fe:
iew Hexican Printing Cor:any, 1889), 5. Heresfter eited
as BIR, 1889.
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the heart of a rich sgricultural, stoek, and mining couniry
of which the chief exports were beef, grain, hay, fruita,
wool, hides, and wine.l6 The rallrosd brought in a grezter
gupply of grain from other srezs and promoted the production
of grain in the Rio Grande Valley. The prices of wheat,
hay, corn, and other products were much higher in New Mexico
than they were in the surrounding states due to the faet
that so 1ittle of the land in the Territory could be cultli-
vated without 1rrigation.l7 Before the rzilroad ceme, agricul-
tural products were scsrce and prices were high, with corn
selling at ten and twelve cents a pound snd other crops
gelling in proportion.la The low freight rates on the rall-
road soon ensbled Kansas corn to be shipped in'and to sell
at seventy-five cents to 2 dollzr and & guarter a bushel zfter
1880, while Kancas hey sold et twelve and eighteen dollers a
ton.19 Grapes had been successfully grown around Albuguergue
for many yesrs, snd in 1880 one acre was producing sbout
twenty berrels of wine worth on the aversge seven hundred

dollars.20 ¥ith the increase in populstion, farming methods

16
Mex Frost, lew Hexleo (Bureau of Immigration Report,

Santa Fe: New Mexlean Printing Company, 1890), p. 148. Iliere-
after cited as BIR, 1890.
7 mia., p. 0.

18 4.

19 1pia.
» Journsl, February 12, 1881.
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lmproved and the acerage in farms and production inecreszsed.
Hany frult trees of various kinds were plshted soon after the
rallroad esme into the Rio Grande Valley, but it was 1888 be-
fore.these treee were in full scale production.

With good farming land svallable and access to market
furnished by the railroad, more land in the Rio Grande Valley
vas teken up by Anglos, who helped to transform in part the
antiquated methods of agriculture used by the Hispsasnosg. In
many cases the primitive crooked stick plow wae replaced by
the Amerlcsn steel plow, and the clumsy garrets, the rough
block-wheel cart, was replaced with the farm wagon, but the
Higpano farmer still clung to the old method of threshing his
wheat by Strampling 1t with animels, and his aystem of irrige=- ;
22 st

tion remained unchanged. He wae accustomed to growing BL&

large crops with the grestest possible waste of time and Vil

Pt ‘(l P

INE :0‘

cared not 1f the apple orchards zlong the Rio Grande grev
well or died. To the Anglo farmer the rich sedimentary soil,
the moderste climate, and the avellsble merket for his products
were a chsallenge, and he made every use of his advantages.

He 1rrigsted larger =areas, vlanted a greater variety of crops,
and planted orchards whieh soon produced frult sufficlent to
enzble participstion in the eastern markets.

Before the time of Coronado the Indiazns of the Rio

21
r S

BIR, 1889, p. 16.
2 BIR, 1890, p. 113.
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Grande Valley prsascticed irrigation with community control of
wzter, and the same method was handed down to the Spanisrds
end the Anglos. Under thls gystem esch ditoh was held and
controlled by the owner of the land it irrigsted, and lebor
vwes assesgsed for the maintenanee of the diteh in proportion
to the amount of land held. The ditches had no regular gates
or slulces, and flooding was the only mesns of irrigation;
therefore much water was wasted.23 The average cost of con-
structing a ditech in the Territory, and the same was trme of
Bernalillo County, was $1,738 .per mile and $6.40 per scre of
land under dltch,zu and this method of cultivation enabled
the land to produce from fifteen to fifty bushels of whest
per acre, forty to sixty bushels of corn, thirty-five to
forty-five bushels of oats, and forty to rfifty bushels of
barley.25

Bernalillo County was one of the richest and the most
populous counties of the Territory with resources in zgricul-

ture, horticulture, sheep and wool, eattle, gold, coal, and

other minersls as well ag being the centrsl location of New

53 Hew Mexico (Buresu of Immigration Report, Santa Fe:
New HMexiecen Printing Company, 1897), p. 11l. Hereafter cited
as BIR, 1897.

24’§§pta Fe County (Buresu of Immigrstion Report,
Santa Fe: New Mexiean Printing Company, 1906), p. 39. Cited
as BIR, 1906.

25 BIR, 1890, pp. 114=115.
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Mexico with access to the mérkets in Albuquerque.26 Extend-
ing through the Rio Grande Valley for more than gixty miles
north and south, the county contained sbout 1,000,000 acres
of irrigable land and in 1889 84% of this land was still
aVailable.27 It has been asserted that ten acres of land
in the Rio Grande Valley could be made to net larger returns
through irrigation than could be realized on a guarter sec-
tion of land in the grain growing atates.za

Becausgse of the searcity of arsble land in New HMexleo,
the prices of farm products were always high, and even though
the railrosd ensbled produce to be shipped in end to sell
at lower prices, with the inereasing population and the
growing demand the cultivated land in the Territory was in-
sufficient to supply the needs of the people. When transpor-
tation facilities were lacking many of the crops could be
profitebly disposed of in feeding cattle, sheep and hogs.
This wes one of the best ways to conecentrate the produce singce
the animals represented the best form in which the farmer

ecould get his crops to maerket. After the rasilroad came

the limited area of irrigsble land could not supply the

6
Bernalillo County (Bureau of Immigration Report,
Santa Fe: New Mexlesn Printing Company, 1901), p. 1. Here-
after cited as BIR, 1901.

27 BIR, 1906, p. 12.

28 270 1901, pii16.
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home demand, and the price of farm products was still regu-
lated by the price of sgimilzr products in Ksnsss, which was
the nearest surplus producing point, plus the cost of trans-
jgortation.29 In 1889 the AT&SF reilrosd imported 9,600 tons
of hay, 13,500 tons of grain, and 7,500 tons of flour into the
30

Territory. In 1886 wheat was selling in Albucuercue for
a doller and a half to a dollzar and seventy-five cents per
hundred welght, and corn was selling at a dollar and thirty

cents to a dollar gnd a half per hundred weight.Bl

Since the value of land is regulated by its producing
capacity, the pricece of irrigable land in Hew Mexico was &
good price. In 1890 the best quality of irrigable land suit-
able for ordinery farming with water righte could be bought
for §$20 per acre,32 but irrigsble land in the Rio Grande
Valley was selling for {50 an acre in 1883, and 100,000 acres
of rich irrigsble land within ten miles of Albuquercue were
availzble for ten to one hundred dollsrs per scre. 2 In
1884 around Albucuerque sgricultural land with water right
gold for twenty to seventy-five dollarse ver scre according

to locstion in relastion to Albucguercue and the 1mprovementa.'

29 Bir, 1890, p. 76.
30 aid. p. 78
Ibid., pp. 114-115.

(W]
P
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Ibid., p+ 32.
23 ¥J, October 6, 1883,
3% 1J, Jenuery 23, 1884.
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¥ithin three or four miles of Albuguergue the price of land
edvanced until it was selling no less than sixty dollers per

35

scre in 1889. Abouﬁzsefen;éighﬂusof the Territory wae

open for settlement at this time with more then two million

36

acree of irrigsble land availsble, and in 1897 there were

£till half a million scres of irrigasble land in the Rio
Grande Vzlley which were not occnpied.37
Because of the excellent climste of New liexico and the
use of irrigstion, 1t was possible for the farmers to raise
two crops on the same plece of land in one geascon in the mid-
dle section of the Rio Grande Valley. Agricultural operstions
were carried on throughout the year with cereals and alfelfa
being sown during the winter months lesving the summer months
free for h:rvest or for the raising of snother crop.38 Alfal-~
fa wee grown in the irrigsted sections up to an zltitude of
8,000 feet, and the sverage yeild wae azbout three tons to

39

the zore. Being well adspted to the eclimate and soil of
lew Mexico, one sowing of alfslfa in the velley might yleld

es many as four cuttings a year aversging five to seven tons

35 pIn, 1889, p. 47.
36 Ibid.
4 BIR, 1897, p. 11.

38 The Land of Sunshine (Bureau of Immigration Report,
edited by Msx Frost and Pasul A. F. Walter, Santa Fe: Hew
Mexican ~rinting Compeny, 1904), p. 83. Heresfter cited as
BIR, 1904.

3?7 Inia., p. 99.
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to the sere and retailing at about twenty dollars to the
ton.“o The cost of production inecluding taxes, water rent,
growing, hervesting, baling, and plzecing on board the cars
did not exceed four dollars per ’con.“'l The price of alfalfa
veried depending upon vproduction, the smount consumed by
stock being fattened, and the shipping fseilities. Besldes
locsl consumption, the demsnd came from towne, mining snd
rallroad camps, isolated stock ranches, and portions of Texas
and Hexico.42 Two tone of this feed would fatten a range
steer in ninety daye, and experienced men estimated that they
got Just es much per ton for thelr 2lfalfs when marketed in
the form of good beef =22 when it was teken to market.“B

With the coming of the rallrosd the Rio Grande Valley
vagged from ordinary worthless or unimproved farm land into
vine-yards, orch:rds, and gardens the produce of which come~
pared favorably with that of Celifornis in quality and mrice.
Frulte, vegetables, grapes and vast amounts of grain were
raised in the valley without difficulty =nd suprlied the
demand from southern Cslifornis, western Kensss, Arizons,

northern Hexico and western Texas.hg The fzrmers of the valley

50 pIm, 1889, p. 18,

9 BIR, 1904, p. 59.

)
2 Ipid.
%3 IR, 1890, p. 35.

b
“F srR. 1889, p. 5.
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and of the Territory found a ready market in Albuquerque
with an outlet to the south by the AT&SP and SB, north and
ezct by the Santa Fe road, while the A&P furnished an access

to Arizonsa, Cslifornia and the Pseifiec Coaet.“s

The towns
end villages up and down the valley, =and the mining camps
ferther away furniehed = reasdy msrket for all kinds of vege-
tebles and poultry rroduets, fruits, ceresls, and meat and
pald good profite for produce delivered.

Frult growing assumed large provortions through the
C0's sround Aibucuercue with the apple being the most exten-

sively grown and the most profitsble erop. Smell July and

Yctober apples, wild plums, pears, peaches, apricots, and

.quinces hed been grown by the Indians and the Higranos for

many yesrs, but the practice of grafting onto the native
stock soon ensbl<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>